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          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Good afternoon,

          3  and welcome to this hearing of the Committee on

          4  Governmental Operations. I am Simcha Felder, the

          5  Chair of the Committee, and I am joined by my

          6  colleague, Councilman Peter Vallone, Jr., who has a

          7  conflict with another hearing going on across City

          8  Hall, so I thank you for stopping in. I appreciate

          9  it.

         10                 I would also like to introduce to my

         11  left, the Counsel to the Committee, DeNora Johnson,

         12  and to my right Israel Rodriguez -- will be to my

         13  right soon, the Policy Analyst to the Committee, and

         14  we welcome you. We look forward to working together

         15  with you.

         16                 Today the Committee will consider

         17  proposed Intro. No. 502-B, which would amend the New

         18  York City Lobbying Laws, as amended by local laws 15

         19  and 17 of 2006, in relation to the contents of a

         20  lobbyist's statement of registration, and other

         21  technical amendments to the law.

         22                 As a result of meaningful feedback

         23  that the Committee received when it considered

         24  proposed Intro. 502-A, that bill was sent back to

         25  the Committee to make further changes to strengthen
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          2  the law.

          3                 Therefore, today we are considering

          4  those changes in the form of proposed Intro. No.

          5  502-B. Proposed Intro. No. 502-B seeks to clarify

          6  the information lobbyists are required to include in

          7  their statements of registration and protect the

          8  personal privacy of lobbyists and any officer or

          9  employee of such lobbyist who engages in lobbying

         10  activities, or who is employed in an organization's

         11  division that engages in lobbying activities.

         12                 Proposed Intro. 502-B would also

         13  protect lobbyists' spouses or domestic partners and

         14  their unemancipated children by clarifying which

         15  components of such information would be made

         16  publicly available.

         17                 As I stated at the hearing in

         18  February on the prior version of the bill, it's

         19  important for the Council to continue to evaluate

         20  lobbying law to improve upon its mandates and ensure

         21  that the law's practical application conforms to the

         22  law's legislative intent. That's very good. DeNora

         23  wrote this. I'm sure you're all shocked, but that

         24  was very good. Not that the rest of it isn't good,

         25  but that was like super-duper. No, really, that's
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          2  really the crux of what we're doing. In this

          3  particular case, while it is important for us to

          4  ensure that government operations are transparent

          5  and accessible to all, it is also important for us

          6  to ensure that we protect individuals' reasonable

          7  expectation of privacy. For more in-depth analysis

          8  of the bill's provisions, I would refer you to

          9  consult the Committee report prepared by the staff.

         10                 Before we begin testimony today, I'd

         11  like to thank the Administration. Is someone here

         12  from the Administration? Anyone? Okay, who is here

         13  from the Administration? They submitted testimony.

         14  We're going to read all those pages? So, we don't

         15  thank the Administration, because they're not here,

         16  but we will read their testimony into the record.

         17                 The New York City Campaign Finance

         18  Board I know is here. We thank you for coming. The

         19  City Clerk. Anybody here representing the City

         20  Clerk? All right, we'll thank him anyway. And all of

         21  the good government and advocacy groups who are

         22  here, for their input on the proposed amendment. I

         23  look forward to continuing to work collaboratively

         24  and productively on this and other issues in the

         25  future.
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          2                 Now, I'd like to inform all the

          3  witnesses that if they have not signed up yet to

          4  testify, they must do so with the Sergeant-At-Arms

          5  now. According to my records, we started the hearing

          6  ten minutes late, at 1:10, and according to Felder

          7  law of hearings, you have 15 minutes from the

          8  beginning of the hearing to sign up. After that, you

          9  can't sign up. I don't think it's fair for the

         10  people who are here to have to listen to people who

         11  come an hour late.

         12                 So, if you want to talk, we'd be

         13  happy to hear you. So, if you want to speak, you've

         14  got to sign up within the next 15 minutes, or 10

         15  minutes. If not, we'll let you talk after the

         16  hearing. Today is a busy day of hearings at the

         17  Council, so there is limited hearing room space

         18  available to consider all the important issues we

         19  must tend to. This Committee hearing is only

         20  scheduled for a short period of time. That said, I'd

         21  like to inform all the witnesses, as well, that

         22  their testimony will be limited to approximately two

         23  minutes.

         24                 And another, the second of the Felder

         25  laws, is that we only listen to testimony that
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          2  hasn't been heard from before. So, if you're going

          3  to repeat what was said, instead of taking two

          4  minutes to repeat it, you can do us all and yourself

          5  a favor by just saying I agree or disagree with what

          6  so and so said. And I promise, this is not Saturday

          7  Night Live or anything like that, whatever attention

          8  you think we may be getting from the cable station,

          9  right?

         10                 All right, next, finally I'd like to

         11  thank my colleague, Council Member Joel Rivera,

         12  Chair of the Health Committee and all of the Health

         13  Committee staff, for permitting us to use part of

         14  their hearing time. I want to mention that we've

         15  been joined by Council Member Inez Dickens, who is

         16  all the way to my right. She also has other hearings

         17  going on, and I thank you for coming.

         18                 The first witness will be the

         19  Campaign Finance Board. I have Amy Loprest and Sue

         20  Ellen Dodell. Is there anyone else who is coming

         21  that has to be identified? Is she part of the panel?

         22  Why don't you come up, in case you want to have a

         23  discussion? And you'll identify yourself if you plan

         24  on speaking. And Councilman Erik Dilan, who is here

         25  also, has conflicting hearings going on. Thank you.
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          2  I'm not saying anything else. I'm not saying

          3  anything else.

          4                 Whenever you're ready.

          5                 MS. LOPREST: Okay. Good morning,

          6  Chairman Felder and Committee members. I'm Amy

          7  Loprest, Executive Director of the New York City

          8  Campaign Finance Board. With me are Deputy Executive

          9  Director Carole Campolo, and General Counsel, Sue

         10  Ellen Dodell.

         11                 I'm here to testify on Intro. 502-B

         12  to modify the requirements for the disclosure of

         13  lobbyists' activities.

         14                 The lobbying law enacted last year by

         15  the City Council is a reform measure that achieves

         16  some important good government objectives. It gives

         17  New Yorkers more information about people seeking to

         18  influence City government and it limits the

         19  influence of lobbyists' campaign contributions in

         20  the political process.

         21                 The lobbying law explicitly

         22  recognizes that the Board must have access to both

         23  the names and home addresses of lobbyists as

         24  reported to the City Clerk to adequately enforce the

         25  law's prohibition on matching contributions from
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          2  lobbyists and associated individuals.

          3                 The proposed legislation, which will

          4  amend that law, should not present any adverse

          5  effect on enforcement, nor would it impede any

          6  effort to perform analysis of contributions impacted

          7  by the law.

          8                 The Board believes that proper

          9  enforcement of the law does not require the CFB to

         10  take steps to make those home addresses public, the

         11  Board provides access to campaign finance disclosure

         12  data provided by campaigns through our website

         13  www.nycfb.info.

         14                 Though campaigns are required to

         15  report a home address for every contributor, the

         16  addresses are not published on our website. The

         17  changes to the law relating to the campaign

         18  contribution from unemancipated children of

         19  lobbyists should present no impediment to

         20  enforcement of the law, once a proper mechanism is

         21  created to receive lobbyists' amended statements of

         22  registration from the City Clerk.

         23                 We anticipate working with the Office

         24  of the City Clerk and the Department of Information

         25  Technology and Telecommunications, as we have in the
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          2  past, to design a response to the requirements of

          3  this amended law.

          4                 Thank you for soliciting our input on

          5  this issue and we look forward to answering any

          6  questions you may have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

          8  much. Do any of my colleagues have any questions? I

          9  thank Councilman Larry Seabrook, who has joined us.

         10  This is your last call for questions. I'm not

         11  questioning. Unless you have questions you want me

         12  to ask you?

         13                 MS. LOPREST: No. No, I don't. Thank

         14  you very much, Council member.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 I want to make it clear that the

         18  issue, although sometimes I kid around, some people

         19  say that I kid around a little too much, I don't

         20  agree at all, but the issue is a very serious one.

         21  The only reason that we're not spending time asking

         22  many questions is that this is really just an

         23  amendment to something that we passed and did spend

         24  a lot of time on. So, if the members have questions,

         25  I don't want you to think that the testimony or your
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          2  coming here is not appreciated. Thank you very much.

          3                 The next witness is Doug Israel from

          4  the Citizens Union.

          5                 You know what? We're going to do a

          6  panel. We have four witnesses only, so I hope you

          7  don't mind. We're going to just call all of you up,

          8  and this by no means is meant to pressure you to

          9  speak any less than you have to. I have Joan -- is

         10  it Malin? I'm sorry -- with Planned Parenthood. And

         11  Kim Sweet from New York Lawyers for Public Interest,

         12  and Allison Sesso. Did I pronounce that correctly?

         13                 MS. SESSO: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: From Human

         15  Services Council of New York City.

         16                 Who got to the table first? All

         17  right, you go.

         18                 MR. ISRAEL: Good afternoon, Chair

         19  Felder. Good afternoon, Chair Felder, and members of

         20  the Committee on Governmental Operations. I'm Doug

         21  Israel, the Public Policy Advocacy Director with

         22  Citizens' Union.

         23                 Our organization has long supported

         24  efforts to increase disclosure of lobbying and

         25  political fundraising activities in New York City.
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          2  Through increased transparency, New Yorkers can

          3  better know whether our elected officials are making

          4  decisions in the best interests of the public,

          5  without undue influence from campaign contributors

          6  and lobbyists.

          7                 We supported the City's move to

          8  restrict the contributions that lobbyists and their

          9  spouses or domestic partners and unemancipated

         10  children could give to elected officials, as well as

         11  the move to increase disclosure requirements to

         12  monitor and enforce compliance with these

         13  restrictions.

         14                 We also place great importance on the

         15  need and responsibility of local government to keep

         16  private the personal information it collects to

         17  ensure compliance with the law, and hence, we

         18  supported Intro. 502-A.

         19                 Today we now support Intro. 502-B, as

         20  well, as we believe it appropriately improves upon

         21  502-A, and last year's lobbying reform legislation

         22  by building in necessary safeguards to protect the

         23  privacy rights of registered City lobbyists.

         24                 In conjunction with Common Cause New

         25  York and NYPIRG, Citizens Union recently submitted a
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          2  joint letter to the Council stating this support. We

          3  believe this bill will adequately protect lobbyists'

          4  privacy while still allowing the New York City

          5  Campaign Finance Board access to the information it

          6  needs to enforce the law and ensure compliance with

          7  the City's Campaign Finance regulations. In this

          8  respect, Introduction 502-B strikes a proper balance

          9  between compliance and privacy.

         10                 Thank you very much for the

         11  opportunity to testify.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         13                 I think we'll have everybody testify,

         14  and then we'll ask the questions.

         15                 MS. MALIN: Good afternoon. My name is

         16  Joan Malin, I'm the President and CEO of Planned

         17  Parenthood of New York City, and I want to thank you

         18  for holding this hearing and allowing us the

         19  opportunity to testify on Introduction 502-B.

         20                 I'm testifying today about our

         21  concerns with Intro. 502-B, specifically the

         22  requirement to disclose home address information of

         23  lobbyists and their families.

         24                 As many of you know, there is a

         25  violent history with reproductive health in this
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          2  country. Since the Roe v. Wade Decision legalized

          3  abortion in 1973, reproductive health clinics and

          4  health care providers across the United States have

          5  become the targets of violence by anti-abortion

          6  extremists.

          7                 In the early 1990s, anti-abortion

          8  extremists concluded that murdering providers was

          9  the only way to stop abortion. The first provider

         10  was murdered in 1993. Since then, there have been

         11  six subsequent murders and numerous attempted

         12  murders of clinic staff and physicians, several of

         13  which occurred in their own homes.

         14                 In 2001, one of the most infamous

         15  anti-abortion extremists, Clayton Waagner, posted on

         16  his website that since doctors are too hard to get

         17  to these days, his focus would be on other Planned

         18  Parenthood staff. I quote: "I'm going after everyone

         19  now. Anyone who works at an abortion location or

         20  Planned Parenthood, I don't care if their location

         21  actually performs abortions or not, all Planned

         22  Parenthood locations are targets. It doesn't matter

         23  to me if you're a nurse, a receptionist, a

         24  bookkeeper or a janitor, if you work for the

         25  murderous abortionist, I'm going to kill you."
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          2                 Six years later that quote still

          3  chills me. Our concerns are not theoretical. Our

          4  concerns are based on real threats and real

          5  incidences targeting abortion providers and their

          6  staff throughout the country. We must be clear that

          7  New York is not an exception. We take security very

          8  seriously at Planned Parenthood of New York City. I

          9  take the security of our safety, safety of our

         10  clients and employees is one of my utmost concerns.

         11  If you visit us, you know that you go through

         12  security guards at all three of our centers and

         13  administrative offices, bags are checked at the

         14  door, our health centers have metal detectors, we

         15  scan our mail and packages and our staff is trained

         16  what to do in case of a bomb threat, and indeed

         17  we've had multiple bomb threats over the past few

         18  years.

         19                 Now, I want to emphasize that I

         20  appreciate the need for campaign reform, and our

         21  opposition is not to this larger goal. We share that

         22  goal. But if faced with complying with Intro. 502-B,

         23  Planned Parenthood will need to make some tough

         24  decisions about how much advocacy and lobbying work

         25  we can do and who can represent us while doing that
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          2  work.

          3                 In the past we've had health care

          4  staff and providers accompany us to meetings to

          5  share their expertise, and I think legislators

          6  welcome the opportunity to talk to providers.

          7                 If they are required to disclose

          8  their home address, we regretfully may not be able

          9  to use our staff and providers in this way. This

         10  will significantly limit the richness of Planned

         11  Parenthood's advocacy work. Again, we recognize

         12  there is compelling need to utilize disclosure

         13  provisions with respect to lobbying activities;

         14  however, we also strongly believe there is a

         15  compelling privacy and safety interest in preventing

         16  the disclosure of Planned Parenthood staff person's

         17  home address information. We offer an alternative

         18  plan to reach the same goal of ensuring that

         19  contributions of registered lobbyists are not

         20  eligible for matching funds.

         21                 Planned Parenthood would be

         22  responsible for notifying our employees who are

         23  registered lobbyists that if they make a campaign

         24  contribution, they are required to proactively alert

         25  the Campaign Finance Board.
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          2                 We recognize that there is an

          3  administrative impact of such an exception, however,

          4  we strongly believe the high-risk nature of our work

          5  warrants such an exception.

          6                 While Intro. 502-B recognizes the

          7  need to keep home addresses private and directs the

          8  Clerk's Office to keep that information

          9  confidential, we must note that even the most

         10  sophisticated technology systems have been subject

         11  to security breaches. At Planned Parenthood, I

         12  cannot open ourselves up to that risk, so we oppose

         13  Intro. 502-B, unless amended. I want to thank you

         14  for considering my testimony.

         15                 MS. SWEET: Good afternoon. My name is

         16  Kim Sweet, and I'm the Associate General Counsel of

         17  New York Lawyers for the Public Interest.

         18                 Like many of the other groups who are

         19  caught within the ambit of this law, we are not a

         20  professional lobbying firm, and we do not charge

         21  anything for our lobbying services. Rather, we're a

         22  non-profit organization that advocates for social

         23  change on behalf of under-represented and

         24  disadvantaged New Yorkers. Lobbying is just one of

         25  the tools that our lawyers and our organizers may

                                                            18

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  use to address the serious problems faced by our

          3  client communities.

          4                 Our chief concern with Local Law 15,

          5  which is not remedied by this proposed bill, is the

          6  requirement that lobbying organizations disclose for

          7  every employee who engages in lobbying or who is

          8  employed in a division that engages in lobbying,

          9  their home addresses, and the names and home

         10  addresses of their spouses or domestic partners.

         11                 We have two senior attorneys whose

         12  predicaments illustrate some of the problems that

         13  arise with these mandatory disclosure rules. They're

         14  not as dramatic as the problems faced by Planned

         15  Parenthood, but they're serious to us.

         16                 In one case we have an attorney whose

         17  husband has a sensitive job that requires them to

         18  keep their address and phone number unlisted, and

         19  the other case, the disclosure of the required

         20  information, would reveal family circumstances that

         21  the attorney had hoped to keep confidential.

         22                 Both of these attorneys want to

         23  comply with the law, so they are faced with the

         24  untenable option of making the disclosure that could

         25  be harmful to their families, or for going lobbying
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          2  at the City level, and at this point both of these

          3  attorneys have opted to forego lobbying. How their

          4  clients' causes will be affected remains to be seen.

          5                 A political speech should not be

          6  chilled in this manner. We were pleased to see this

          7  proposed bill, that this proposed bill eliminates

          8  the disclosure requirement for unemancipated

          9  children, unless a political contribution is made in

         10  their name. We urge that the same change be made

         11  with respect to spouses and domestic partners. The

         12  mere requirement that the City Clerk must keep

         13  address information confidential does not provide us

         14  with sufficient comfort, as that office is clearly

         15  struggling to put systems into place to comply with

         16  all of these new requirements.

         17                 So, thank you for the opportunity to

         18  speak to you today about this important topic, and

         19  I'd be happy to answer any questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Before the next

         21  witness, we have been joined by Council Member

         22  Addabbo. Thank you for being here.

         23                 MS. SESSO: Hi. Good afternoon. My

         24  name is Allison Sesso, I'm the Deputy Director for

         25  the Human Services Council of New York City. We
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          2  represent not-for-profit providers of social

          3  services here in the City.

          4                 I want to begin by thanking you for

          5  addressing this issue overall and for revisiting

          6  these piece of legislation.

          7                 A lot of organizations that are

          8  not-for-profits are registered as lobbyists as

          9  entities, and we are really happy that the

         10  confidentiality concerns that we've been bringing up

         11  to you over the last year have been addressed. The

         12  fact that children don't have to be named, we're

         13  very thankful for that, and we're glad that the home

         14  address information will be kept confidential, and

         15  so we're glad that you're trying to balance the need

         16  to reach your goals, while also recognizing the

         17  confidentiality concerns that we're raising.

         18                 There is a concern, as some of the

         19  colleagues have raised, as well, about the

         20  definition of a lobbying division. A lot of

         21  organizations who want to comply with this law are

         22  struggling to try and figure out which employees

         23  this actually covers. In conversations with the

         24  clerk, in terms of implementing this over the last

         25  year when we've had discussions, it seems that it's
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          2  going to cover support staff and administrative

          3  staff who we think shouldn't really be banned from

          4  the Campaign Finance laws. We think that just

          5  because you're an administrative assistant at a

          6  not-for-profit agency that happens to be registered

          7  as a lobbyist, that your campaign contributions

          8  should still be matched, you should still be able to

          9  be matched under that.

         10                 So, we ask that you really look at

         11  this and try to have a clearer definition of who

         12  would be captured under this, and make it clear that

         13  it's really professional staff that should be

         14  captured.

         15                 The other thing is public testimony.

         16  Under the way the law is currently written it's not

         17  clear that public testimony is not considered

         18  lobbying. So, we want to make sure that

         19  not-for-profit professionals are able to feel

         20  comfortable if they're not registered as lobbyists

         21  to continue to come and testify and bring to you

         22  what they're experiencing on the ground when they're

         23  dealing with clients. So, we ask that you revisit

         24  this definition and make it explicitly clear that

         25  public testimony is not considered lobbying.
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          2                 And then lastly, and I understand

          3  that this is not going to be considered today, but

          4  for the future, I would ask you to consider even

          5  raising the thresholds from $2,000 to $5,000, for

          6  those that would have to comply with this law.

          7  That's what the state law is, it would make sure

          8  that the resources of the Clerk's Office are really

          9  focused on those this law intends to capture.

         10                 So, I want to thank you for the

         11  opportunity to testify today and thank you for

         12  really revisiting this law.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         14                 Do my colleagues have any questions?

         15                 Council Member Dilan.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I just wanted

         17  to ask a question to -- let me make sure I get the

         18  name right here -- okay, it would be for Planned

         19  Parenthood, Ms. Malin; is that right?

         20                 MS. MALIN: Mm-hmm.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Now, you're

         22  opposed to this, not just basically on the goal that

         23  we're trying to achieve, but I guess then the risks

         24  that organizations like yours would be facing.

         25                 MS. MALIN: We support the goal. Our
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          2  concern is being required to give the home addresses

          3  of all of our providers and our staff who may engage

          4  in lobbying activities and talking to the

          5  legislators. That's the part that we have most

          6  concern about.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Would all the

          8  people that I guess then that do your work, are they

          9  employees of Planned Parenthood, or are they outside

         10  lobbying firms?

         11                 MS. MALIN: We engage one outside

         12  lobbying firm, but we use, in our conversations with

         13  elected officials and in the work that we do, by and

         14  large it's done by our staff.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Are they also

         16  registered lobbyists, these same individuals?

         17                 MS. MALIN: My understanding under the

         18  law is that we would be required to register them as

         19  lobbyists if they engage in any kind of conversation

         20  or go into an elected official's office and talk

         21  about our work and make a case for what we do and

         22  make a case for our efforts.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay. I guess

         24  what type of change to 502-B, which I'm sure you

         25  talked to the attorneys and staff here, but I
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          2  haven't heard of any changes that your organization

          3  has been seeking. Could you elaborate?

          4                 MS. MALIN: We don't want to be able

          5  to give the home addresses. We would like to be able

          6  to use either 26 Bleeker Street, which is our main

          7  offices. And what I talked about in here was a

          8  suggestion that we would not give home addresses,

          9  but we would also inform all of our staff that if

         10  they do give a campaign contribution, then they have

         11  to give their home address, and that they would be

         12  subject to review, and then I guess their funding

         13  could be used for matching funds at that point; is

         14  that correct? Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay, thank

         16  you.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I just want to

         19  address some of what was said, because I think some

         20  of the concerns, there are specific guidelines as to

         21  what deems one a lobbyist, so I think the intent, I

         22  think the intent here is clearly a good one, about

         23  trying to make government as transparent as

         24  possible. I think some of the examples that some of

         25  you gave would not be identified as lobbyists. You
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          2  have to go back to the City Clerk, I think they have

          3  very specific guidelines as to what deems someone a

          4  lobbyist or not. Or if you want, as the lawyer just

          5  mentioned, you can request the advisory opinion from

          6  the City Clerk, because I think that some of the

          7  issues, I'm not saying all, but some of the issues

          8  that were raised may not be a problem. Certainly

          9  some of the examples that you gave from Planned

         10  Parenthood, I think should certainly be brought up

         11  with the City Clerk.

         12                 I think the legislation in general is

         13  not perfect. I don't think there ever is perfect

         14  legislation. I think for the most part it

         15  accomplishes what it's supposed to, and I think for

         16  the most part the amendment is trying to address

         17  some of the issues that many people have brought up

         18  about where does it end. So, I don't think it

         19  solves, I don't think it takes care of some of what

         20  you said.

         21                 The threshold issues. Let me just

         22  address the threshold issues. I doubt very much,

         23  although it's easy for me to say we'll look into

         24  that, but I don't think that would be truthful. I

         25  don't think we're going to look into that, because
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          2  the Speaker, as well as many members and many people

          3  in government now are trying to do, you know, I'm

          4  not giving a sermon, but Maimodity (phonetic) says

          5  that when a tree is bent in the wrong direction, in

          6  order to get it straight, you have to bend it in the

          7  opposite direction.

          8                 So, we may be going to an extreme,

          9  you know, if you want to consider that, but the

         10  purpose of it is to try to get things straight so it

         11  has merit. But if we're trying to get things

         12  somewhere in between, I don't think that's -- you

         13  know, I appreciate the testimony, I don't think that

         14  we're going to be able to do that.

         15                 I think some of the other things

         16  mentioned, it's not a closed door. We're amending

         17  it. I'm not saying we're going to amend it every few

         18  months, but I think we want, the intention is to

         19  make the lobbying law in New York City the best in

         20  the country, the most stringent in the country, you

         21  know, and I think that's important. I think that's

         22  what we're trying to do, but we should certainly

         23  take into account the situations that some of you

         24  have raised.

         25                 But I would just ask you to make sure
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          2  -- look, we're going to be voting on this tomorrow,

          3  so the likelihood that anything is going to change

          4  between now and then is not good. But if there are

          5  specific issues after you've contacted the City

          6  Clerk's Office, or you can try talking to some of

          7  the staff here, that really in terms of defining a

          8  lobbyist, whether it endangers, really endangers,

          9  because irrespective of whether somebody agrees or

         10  disagrees on an issue, there is no, there is no

         11  possible explanation or rationale for somebody doing

         12  what they do, you know, these people. And just

         13  excusing it by saying someone is crazy, I don't take

         14  that. I don't take that as an excuse. Some people

         15  use religion, some people use other things for

         16  things that they believe in.

         17                 So, if there are, after you find out

         18  really the details and you have somebody, Doug

         19  Israel, who is sitting here at the table, he may be

         20  very helpful, very, very helpful in helping define

         21  some of the issues that you raise, whether in fact

         22  you fall under that category, probably you're better

         23  off with him than with me, certainly. And after

         24  that, if there is still an issue, then we should try

         25  to see if there is something that can be done about
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          2  that.

          3                 I just found out that we have someone

          4  from the Civil Liberties Union who came late and was

          5  not aware of my 15-minute rule, and is opposed to

          6  the legislation. So, if they were in favor, I would

          7  say too bad, but since they're opposed, I'll ask you

          8  to join the panel and we'll give you two minutes. We

          9  can bring as many chairs as you need. Can you add

         10  two chairs, please?

         11                 MS. LIEBERMAN: I'm Donna Lieberman.

         12  I'm the Executive Director, and with me is Irum

         13  Taqi. I'm sorry that we're late. We were led to

         14  believe that it would take a good hour before you

         15  would get to us.

         16                 The New York Civil Liberties Union

         17  has been engaged in extensive conversation with

         18  Counsel to the Committee, and appreciates we have

         19  been engaged in that conversation, unfortunately,

         20  however, despite the goodwill, there has been no

         21  movement whatsoever to accommodate the very

         22  important and legitimate concerns that we have

         23  raised.

         24                 Those concerns are a couple of fold:

         25  they have to do with privacy and freedom of
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          2  expression. The purpose of this legislation is

          3  about, this is legislation that's all about campaign

          4  finance, and there are significant interests

          5  involved here. However, despite the fact that we

          6  proposed amendments based on our conversation to

          7  accommodate the very, very important interests the

          8  Civil Liberties Union has and that Planned

          9  Parenthood and other controversial organizations

         10  have about revealing the names of our spouses, and

         11  our home addresses, the legislation has failed to

         12  accommodate that.

         13                 Now, these aren't simply, you know,

         14  concerns that we have. These are real problems.

         15  We're organizations that get death threats. We've

         16  gotten death threats, our staff has gotten death

         17  threats for taking unpopular positions. We represent

         18  the Bill of Rights, we represent people's rights to

         19  say things that are unpopular. Of course we're going

         20  to get threats, because people don't understand the

         21  difference between the right to say something and

         22  what's actually being said.

         23                 So, we have, we can give you chapter

         24  and verse about the threats that we've received,

         25  whether it's because we represented the clan a
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          2  couple of years ago, because we protect the right to

          3  choose, and people don't like abortion, for the same

          4  reason that people attack Planned Parenthood, or

          5  whether it's what happened just last week where --

          6  just this week where our staff had to have a

          7  Sheriff's escort in order to attend a meeting

          8  Upstate to oppose a sign ordinance, an ordinance

          9  about lawn signs. So, it happens.

         10                 There are ways to accomplish all the

         11  objectives that the Council seeks to accomplish. If

         12  the objective is to avoid bundling and to avoid

         13  batching lobbyists' campaign contributions - well,

         14  draft something that applies just to lobbyists who

         15  make campaign contributions. We have proposed that,

         16  the Council has refused to accommodate.

         17                 Let me just say one thing, I don't

         18  have a lot of time, I know. But this is a

         19  constitutional matter, okay? We believe that the

         20  statute as drafted, refusing to make the

         21  accommodations, which are kind of easy and minor, is

         22  unconstitutional under the Supreme Court's holding

         23  in Buckley versus Valeo, and we're going to have to

         24  challenge it, because I have staff who I can't allow

         25  to lobby under this statute, because I can't require
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          2  my staff to subject themselves to threats and

          3  harassment. It's happened before, I'm not going to

          4  let it happen again. And we believe that we have the

          5  right to lobby without putting our staff and their

          6  families in jeopardy.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Well, I'm

          8  certainly happy I let you speak today.

          9                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Are you really?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         11                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Good.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I have to think

         13  about that. Okay.

         14                 MS. LIEBERMAN: You can think. You're

         15  not time limited, only we are. Or you're time

         16  limited, are you?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: When you're

         18  finished, let me know.

         19                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Okay. Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, so I thank

         21  you for your testimony, really. And do any of my

         22  colleagues have any other questions?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: No. I guess

         24  then that you would be seeking the same amendment

         25  that Planned Parenthood is seeking?
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          2                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Okay, thank

          4  you.

          5                 MS. TAQI: And we have language

          6  proposed.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: You have to

          8  identify yourself if you want to speak.

          9                 MS. TAQI: My name is Irum Taqi, I'm

         10  Legislative Counsel at the New York Civil Liberties

         11  Union. We have proposed language that reflects

         12  Planned Parenthood's concerns and ours that is

         13  contained in our testimony.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you, all.

         15                 Are there any other questions? Okay,

         16  I thank you all for coming today and for your

         17  testimony.

         18                 MS. LIEBERMAN: Thank you.

         19                 (The following written testimony was

         20  read into the record.)

         21

         22

         23  Written Testimony Of:

         24  Anthony W. Crowell

         25  Counselor to the Mayor
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          2  Office of the Mayor

          3

          4

          5                 Good afternoon Chairman Felder and

          6  members of the Committee. Thank you for the

          7  opportunity to appear before you today. My name is

          8  Anthony Crowell, and I am the Counselor to Mayor

          9  Michael R. Bloomberg. I am here today to express the

         10  Administration's strong support for Intro. 502-B.

         11                 As you know, the Administration has

         12  been working closely with the Council, the City

         13  Clerk, Campaign Finance Board, Law Department,

         14  Department of Information Technology and

         15  Telecommunications, and other agencies on the

         16  implementation of the historic and sweeping lobbying

         17  reforms enacted last year as embodied in Local Laws

         18  15, 16 and 17 of 2006. In particular, Local Law 17

         19  amended the New York City Campaign Finance Act to

         20  provide that campaign contributions made by

         21  lobbyists and their spouses, domestic partners and

         22  unemancipated children would not be matchable with

         23  public funds. Local Law 15 contained complementary

         24  amendments to the New York City Lobbying Law

         25  requiring lobbyists to provide information about
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          2  their spouses, domestic partners and unemancipated

          3  children that would enable the Campaign Finance

          4  Board to determine whether a particular contribution

          5  is matchable.

          6                 This bill clarifies and refines

          7  provisions of the Lobbying Law and the Campaign

          8  Finance Act in order to best achieve the goals

          9  embodied in Local Laws 15 and 17 while maximizing

         10  privacy protections for lobbyists and their family

         11  members, and safeguarding the public's expectation

         12  and need for transparency. To that end, the bill

         13  would, most significantly, amend these laws to: (1)

         14  require a lobbyist to disclose the name and home

         15  address of his or her unemancipated child within 48

         16  hours after a campaign contribution is made in the

         17  unemancipated child's name; (2) require a lobbyist

         18  to disclose his or her home and business addresses

         19  and business telephone number, and the home and

         20  business address of his or her spouse or domestic

         21  partner; (3) require the Clerk to keep all home

         22  addresses and the business address of the lobby's

         23  spouse or domestic partner confidential and not

         24  subject to public inspection; (4) prohibit the

         25  Campaign Finance Board from disclosing that any

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  particular campaign contributor is the spouse,

          3  domestic partner or unemancipated child of a

          4  lobbyist or of an officer or employee in the

          5  lobbying division of a organization; and (5) make

          6  certain provisions of the law effective

          7  retroactively to December 10, 2006, the effective

          8  date of the original reforms.

          9                 The Administration supports this

         10  measure for several reasons. First, there is no need

         11  for the lobbyists' annual registration statements to

         12  list the names of lobbyists' unemancipated children,

         13  unless and until a campaign contribution is made in

         14  the unemancipated child's name, to assist the

         15  Campaign Finance Board (the "CFB") in identifying

         16  non-matchable campaign contributions under Local Law

         17  17 of 2006.

         18                 Second, the lobbyists' registration

         19  statements should contain their business and home

         20  addresses, and those of their spouses and domestic

         21  partners, as well as the names and home addresses of

         22  their unemancipated children if a campaign donation

         23  is made in the unemancipated child's name, again to

         24  assist the CFB in identifying non-matchable campaign

         25  contributions.
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          2                 Third, there is good reason to keep

          3  the home addresses of lobbyists confidential, along

          4  with those of their spouses, domestic partners and

          5  unemancipated children. These amendments are needed

          6  to protect the personal privacy of lobbyists and

          7  their families, especially those who represent

          8  controversial or vulnerable clients such as, for

          9  example, family planning clinics or battered women's

         10  shelters, and who might be placed at risk if their

         11  home addresses were made public. Thank you.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 1:49 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 11th day of April 2007.
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